
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




Dan Glynn
Director of Parks & Recreation 


City of Stoughton 







Parks & Recreation Department 
Overview


Department Responsibilities 


 Parks & Recreation Facility Planning 


 Parks & Open Space Management  


 Youth Center Operation 


 Recreation Programming 


 Troll Beach Operation


 Parks Maintenance – Public Works 







Organizational Structure


 Oversight & Committees 
 Parks & Recreation Committee 


 River & Trails Taskforce


 Ad Hoc Whitewater Park Steering Committee 


 Friends of the Stoughton Area Youth Center


 Friends of Gazebo Musikk


 Staff
 Recreation Supervisor


 Parks & Recreation Assistant 


 Program Workers & Volunteers


 Troll Beach Manager


 Lifeguards  


 Youth Center Manager


 Youth Center Assistant (2)







Recreation Programming 


 Youth & Adult Sports 


 Adult Softball


 Adult & Youth Basketball 


 Pickleball


 Adult & Youth Flag Football


 Youth & Adult Fitness


 Zumba


 Yoga


 Partnership with Level-Up Gym 


 Youth & Adult Enrichment 


 Art Camp


 Youth Cooking Classes 


 Special Events 


 Gazebo Musikk


 Regional Flag Football Tournament 







Troll Beach
 Renovated in 2012


 Attendance went from 3,000 to 
16,000 


 Troll Beach Supervisor 
 Head Lifeguard 


 Asst. Head Lifeguard


 Lifeguards 


 Front Desk 


 Concessions Contracted 







Youth Center 


 New building opened 2012
 Lease with Stoughton Trailers 


 Youth Center Manager
 Youth Center Assistants X2


 Afterschool Program
 Average 6,500 attendance per year


 Grades 5-8 


 Mentoring, Tutoring, Snack, Gym, WiFi


 Facility for Recreation Programming







Park & Open Space Management 


 Park Shelter Reservations 
 100 reservations per year


 Athletic Field Reservations (Athletic Field Policy) 
 Soccer fields and ball diamonds 
 Youth Sport Organizations – SALL, SABA, SYS 


 Hunting & Trapping Permits 
 Special Event Permits 


 12 special events 
 Taste of Stoughton, Catfish River, Youth Sports, Etc. 


 Stoughton Fair Lease 
 Community Garden 







Parks & Recreation Facility Planning


 Parks & Recreation Facility Plans & Studies
 2018 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 


 ADA Transition Plan 


 Park Impact Fee Study







Parks & Recreation Facility Planning –
New Parks 
 Site Selection 


 Review CORP & Work with Developer 
 Trail Connectivity


 Street Frontage 


 Land Suitability


 Environmental Protection  


 Park Master Plan
 Budget – Impact Fees  


 Design & Engineering 


 Construction







51 West 







Kettle Park West







Parks & Recreation Facility Planning -
Park Master Plans 


 Mandt Park Master Plan


 Bjoin Park Master Plan 


 Dunkirk Park Master Plan 


 Racetrack Park Master Plan 







Parks & Recreation Major Projects 


 Parks & Recreation Major Projects 
 Criddle Park Natural Playground


 Mandt Park Pickleball Courts  


 Bjoin Park Phase I Improvements 


 Rotary Park Improvements 


 Nordic Ridge Park Inclusive Playground


 Yahara River Trail Extension 


 Yahara River Park 







Criddle Park Playground Renovation 







Lions Club (Mandt Park) Pickleball
Courts







Bjoin Park Phase I Improvements 







Rotary Park Improvements







Nordic Ridge Park Inclusive Playground 







Yahara River Trail Extension 







Yahara River Park 







Stoughton River Park







Project Phasing
Phase I


• 4th St to 7th St Trail, Mandt Park/RDA 


Pedestrian Bridge


Phase II


• In-water Improvements, Millpond Trails, 


Remediation, and Restoration 


Phase III 


• Mandt Park Improvements, Phase I of 


Master Plan 







Phase I Improvements































Phase II Improvements



















Phase III Improvements













		Dan Glynn

		Parks & Recreation Department Overview

		Organizational Structure

		Recreation Programming 

		Troll Beach

		Youth Center 

		Park & Open Space Management 

		Parks & Recreation Facility Planning

		Parks & Recreation Facility Planning – New Parks 

		51 West 

		Kettle Park West

		Parks & Recreation Facility Planning -  Park Master Plans 

		Parks & Recreation Major Projects 

		Criddle Park Playground Renovation 

		Lions Club (Mandt Park) Pickleball Courts

		Bjoin Park Phase I Improvements 

		Rotary Park Improvements

		Nordic Ridge Park Inclusive Playground 

		Yahara River Trail Extension 

		Yahara River Park 

		Stoughton River Park

		Project Phasing

		Phase I Improvements

		Slide Number 24

		Slide Number 25

		Slide Number 26

		Slide Number 27

		Slide Number 28

		Slide Number 29

		Phase II Improvements

		Slide Number 31

		Slide Number 32

		Slide Number 33

		Phase III Improvements

		Slide Number 35

		Slide Number 36






Racetrack Park Master Plan
Parks and Recreation Committee 


May 18, 2021







PLANNING SUMMARY


 Online Survey (181 responses)


 (2) Stakeholder Meetings – Sports Users and Neighbors – February 22, 2021


 Parks and Recreation Committee Presentation - April 20, 2021


 Public Information Meeting – April 22, 2021


 Park Staff Review







ONLINE SURVEY RESULTS (181 RESPONSES)


What is your age? Where do you live?


How often do you 
use Racetrack Park?


Monthly


What activities do 
you participate in at 
Racetrack Park?


How do you get to 
Racetrack Park?


Drive


City of Stoughton


35-44


Ballfields


Greenspace


Overall satisfaction 
with current park?


Satisfied


What additions or improvements would you like?


Amenities you like in other parks?







RECOMMENDATIONS FROM STAFF & STAKEHOLDERS*


BALLFIELDS
• Covered Dugouts
• Backstop netting 
• Moveable/portable outfield fence 
• Lights on fields 3 and 4
• Scoreboards
• Outfield netting or screening 
• along race track road
• Improve infields
• Additional batting cages 
• Maintain natural turf


PARK FEATURES
• Power pedestals around the park
• Looping trail
• Benches, picnic tables, and bike 


racks
• More trash receptacles in the park
• Dog waste stations along trail
• Update basketball courts
• Add tennis courts (3 to 6)**
• Add volleyball court


PARKING (AND ENTRANCE)
• Signage
• Maps (for distribution by user groups)
• Consolidate existing parking 
• Pave entry drive


CONCESSIONS BUILDING
• More restrooms
• Larger queueing area


*Sports Stakeholder Meeting – 2.11.2021; Neighborhood Stakeholder Meeting – 2.11.2021
** Features omitted at direction of Parks Staff due to adequate coverage in existing facilities.







EXISTING CONDITIONS







Draft Master Plan


1995 Aerial







DRAFT MASTER PLAN


Existing Parking 258/8 ADA
Proposed Parking 382/19 ADA







DRAFT MASTER PLAN


300-ft fence


All Fields
New Dugouts
New Bleachers
New Infield
Lighting
Multiple Base Positions


300-ft fence


Concession,
Restrooms &
Storage


Storage & 
Maintenance Facility


Extended 
Screening or 
Netting


Existing Arboretum


Bike Racks


Bike Racks


Bike Racks
254 stalls/
9 ADA


Overlook Hill


ADA Bench


Bio-Swales







DRAFT MASTER PLAN


Concession,
Restroom &
Storage


Non-Paved Trail


Stormwater Pond 
and Island


Stormwater Pond


Natural Area


Future Trail Connection


Batting Cages


300-ft fence


Existing
Woods


Possible Pedestrian Connection


19 stalls/2 ADA


ADA Picnic Table


ADA Bench


Picnic Area







DRAFT MASTER PLAN


Inclusive 
Playground


Open Shelter


Restroom


ADA Bleacher


ADA Bench


Trail Loop


Bike Racks


55 stalls/4 ADA


Athletic 
Fields


Volleyball


54 stalls/4 ADA


ADA Picnic Table


Bike Racks


Existing Garden


Multi-Sport 
Court







PLAN SUMMARY


Existing Master Plan


Parking Stalls/ADA Stalls 258/8 382/19


Ballfields 4 6


Athletic Fields/Open Space 2 (5.2 Ac.) 2 (4.5 Ac.)


Restrooms 1 M / 1 W 2 M / 2 W / 2 U


Playgrounds 1 1


Park Shelters N/A 1


Concessions 1 2


Natural Area N/A 6.3 Ac.


Trails N/A (0.4 mi) 2.1 mi.


Other Features: • Crabapple Arboretum
• Garden
• Picnic Areas
• Benches
• Basketball Court


• Crabapple Arboretum
• Garden
• Picnic Areas
• ADA Picnic Areas
• Benches
• Bike Racks
• (1) Multi-sport Court
• Volleyball Court


Existing Park: ~29 Ac.; With Proposed Acquisitions ~42.6 Ac.


Possible expansion to 447 stalls


Inclusive structure, fully ADA accessible


Includes stormwater ponds


Includes paved and unpaved surfaces


Possibility for all to be up to 300 ft fence


NOTES







WHAT COMES NEXT


 Cost estimate


 Develop phasing plan with staff


 Draft Master Plan Report


 Review by Staff and Committee


 Final Master Plan and Report







Park Bench
ADA Picnic Table


DRAFT MASTER PLAN


Existing Parking 258/8 ADA
Proposed Parking 382/19 ADA







DRAFT MASTER PLAN


Existing Parking 258/8 ADA
Proposed Parking 382/19 ADA







CONCEPT A


Existing Parking 258/8 ADA
Proposed Parking 321/16 ADA







CONCEPT B


Existing Parking 258/8 ADA
Proposed Parking 274/14 ADA







CONCEPT C


Existing Parking 258/8 ADA
Proposed Parking 326/16 ADA







EXISTING CONDITIONS





		Slide Number 1

		Slide Number 2

		Slide Number 3

		Slide Number 4

		Slide Number 5

		Slide Number 6

		Slide Number 7

		Slide Number 8

		Slide Number 9

		Slide Number 10

		Slide Number 11

		Slide Number 12

		Slide Number 13

		Slide Number 14

		Slide Number 15

		Slide Number 16

		Slide Number 17

		Slide Number 18






Director’s Report 
May 2021 


 


Park Impact Fees & Fee in Lieu of Study 


- Attorney Dregne has updated the ordinances. He had a few questions for the consultant and we 
are making some minor changes which include having the park dedication requirement 
differentiate based on dwelling type. This is due to knowing how many people live in each 
dwelling type which in turn lets us know what the park dedication should be. The other change 
is to review land costs every five years instead of having it indexed to the Construction Costs 
Index.  


Riverfront Project 


- Completed and submitted the WDNR Stewardship and Land Water Conservation Fund grant 
application for 2021.  


- We are still waiting for the high flow scenario for the final survey. We have the low flow and 
average flow scenario data collected. REP will be reviewing the low flow data the week of May 
10th.  


Rotary Park Project 


- The contractor has made good progress on the project. The alternate bid items have been 
completed. The excavation for the utilities and foundation for the restroom have also been 
completed.  


- I have been working with the Rotary Club to satisfy their grant requirements.  


Bjoin Park  


- ERC drilled the native seed on May 12th.  
- The fence posts for the backboard were installed on May 7th.  The backboard should be installed 


by late May, but the contractor has seen some delays with the backboard manufacturer due to 
COVID.  


Nordic Ridge Inclusive Playground 


- Excavation and the sidewalks have been completed. The shade structures footings were 
installed on 5/13. The playground equipment is behind schedule due to a machine at the plant 
being broken. 


Racetrack Park Master Plan 


- We had low attendance at our public informational meeting on April 22. 
- I shared the draft concepts with Public Works. They noted that they would like a storage area 


for maintenance. They also preferred the baseball diamond concept (Concept A).   
- I provided additional feedback to the consultant on the draft concepts.  


Recreation & Youth Center  


- Spring Miniball Soccer, Little Gridders Flag Football, and adult softball have started.  
- The Gazebo Musikk schedule is set. We plan on having the concerts at Rotary Park this summer 


with social distancing. The Friends of Gazebo Musikk will be posting social distancing signs and 







Director’s Report 
May 2021 


announcements will be made by the emcee. The current health order has no restrictions on 
outdoor gatherings.   


- The Youth Center is seeing higher attendance and is averaging close to 30 children a day in May. 
We are working with HR to recruit new Youth Center Assistants due to the increase, but we are 
seeing little to no activity in the applications we receive.   


- Attended the Friends of the Stoughton Area Youth Center meeting on 5/13. They would like a 
key fob system installed at the building so I contacted the contractor for an updated quote.  


- I submitted the monthly report that the County requires as part of our grant obligation.  
- I continue to manage the community garden.  
- The Troll Beach Supervisor has been hired. We only received two applications for the position. 


The lack of applications for part-time positions is concerning. The supervisor is a lifeguard who 
has three years of experience working at the beach.  


- There are 10 lifeguards hired for the beach this summer which is a skeleton crew. We typically 
hire 12-15 lifeguards for the season. The gap year of 2020 where no certification/training was 
offered, children being consumed with school activities, and low pay are the likely reasons for 
this.  


- We started the prep for the beach and some supplies have been ordered.  
- A lot of the special event applications have started to come in.  


 


Misc.  


- A wetland delineation has been scheduled for the Virgin Lake trail.  
- Met with Brett Hebert and Pat Groom to discuss park CIP items. We are going to move forward 


with one parks CIP much like how they collaborate with Planning on the roads CIP.  
- Started to receive estimates on CIP items.  
- 2022 items include: 


o Park Master Plans – 51 West Parks, Kettle Park West  
o Virgin Lake Trail Engineering  
o Outdoor Movie Equipment  
o Settler’s Point Trail and Parking Engineering  
o Schefelker Park & Veterans Park Restroom Engineering  








 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON  
Tuesday, April 20, 2021 at 6:00 pm  
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/327368597  
You can also dial in using your phone. United States: +1 (312) 757-3121 Access Code: 327-368-597  
 
 
Present: Alderpersons: Phil Caravello, Regina Hirsch, Ben Heili, Joyce Tikalsky, Mayor Tim Swadley and 
Parks & Recreation Director Dan Glynn  
 
Guest: Dan Williams, Daniel Schmitt 
 
Meeting called to order at 6:01 pm.  
 
Approval of Minutes from March 16, 2021 
Motion to approve the Minutes from December 15, 2020 by Hirsch seconded by Heili 
Motion carried unanimously 
 
Communication; Directors Report- Director Glynn updated Rotary Park trails and bathroom preparation 
work underway, Bjoin Park prairie preparation starting, current Bike Park in located flood Zone, possibility 
of moving Bike Park to 51 West. 
 
Racetrack Park Master Plan Draft Concept Review- Presentation by Daniel Schmitt, initial thoughts by 
committee members were shared. 
 
Authorizing the submittal of a Wisconsin DNR Stewardship Local Units of Government, Land and Water 
Conservation Fund, and Recreational Trails Grant Programs grant application by the Director of Parks & 
Recreation for Phase II of the Yahara Riverfront Development Project.  
Motion to approve the authorizing the submittal of a Wisconsin DNR Stewardship Local Units of 
Government, Land and Water Conservation Fund, and Recreational Trails Grant Programs grant 
application by Hirsch seconded by Tikalsky 
Motion carried unanimously 
 
 
 
Future Agenda Items  
Park Design Guidelines  
Council Goals  
Future Parkland Acquisitions  
51 West Parks 
Bike Parks 
DNR Grants 
Bike Station site 
 
Motion to adjourn by Tikalsky seconded by Hirsch 
Motion carried unanimously at 5.59 pm 








 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA  
Notice is hereby given that the Parks and Recreation Committee of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location 
given below. 


 


Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Members: 
 
CC: 


PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 
Tuesday, May 18, 2021 at 6:00 pm 
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.  
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/389270925  
 
You can also dial in using your phone.  
United States: +1 (646) 749-3122  
 
Access Code: 389-270-925  
 
New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting 
starts: https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/389270925 
 


    Regina Hirsch, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Joyce Tikalsky, Jim Brandt, Emily Kluess,  
   Tim Swadley 


 
Attorney Matt Dregne, Department Heads, Stoughton Newspapers,  
Judi Krebs, Pat Groom, Sarah Monette, Jon Lewis, Bob Diebel, Desi Weum, 
Council Members 


 
Item #   CALL TO ORDER 
1   Call to Order    
 
2 Approval of Minutes from April 20, 2021 
 
3 Communication  
 Parks & Recreation Department Presentation  
 Director’s Report   
 
Item #   OLD BUSINESS     
4 Racetrack Park Draft Master Plan Presentation (Discussion & Possible 


Action) 
   
Item #   NEW BUSINESS      
5   Election of a Committee Chair (Discussion & Action) 
 
6   Election of a Committee Vice Chair (Discussion & Action) 
 
7   Bike Repair Station GoFundMe (Discussion & Possible Action) 
 
8   Review of Recreational Routes (Discussion & Possible Action) 
 
9   Future Agenda Items 



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/389270925

tel:+16467493122,,389270925

https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/389270925





   Park Design Guidelines  
   Council Goals - Future Parkland Acquisitions 
     
Item #   ADJOURNMENT  








S   T   O   U   G   H   T   O   N
£¤51


UVB


£¤51
£¤51


£¤51


£¤51


UVB


UVN


UVN


UVN


UVN


UVA


UVA


UV138


UV138


Y a
h
a
r a


R
i v


e
r


L a k e K e g o n s a


W   South St


Rober t St


  CTH B  


   
 S


pr
in


g 
R


d


    Skaalen Rd


  STH 138  


   
 P


le
as


an
t H


ill
 R


d


N   Page St


   
 S


ta
rr


 S
ch


oo
l R


d


    Roby Rd


   
 W


ill
ia


m
s 


D
r


W   Main St


   
 L


in
co


ln
 A


ve
E   Main St


    Jackson St


   
 J


oh
ns


on
 S


t


   
 H


oe
l A


ve


N 
  V


an
 B


ur
en


 S
t


S 
  P


ag
e 


St


   
 S


ky
lin


e 
D


r


S 
  F


ou
rt


h 
St


    Shadyside Dr


   
 E


as
t S


t


    Aaker Rd


   
 C


ol
lin


s 
R


d


    Taylor Ln


    Norgaren Rd


    Barber Dr


    Rutland-Dunn Town Line Rd


L i
nn


er
ud


Dr


W   Wilson St


   
 N


yg
aa


rd
 S


t


Moline St


Kriedem a n Dr


    West St


    Halverson Rd


S 
  M


on
ro


e 
St


    Giehler Dr


S 
  P


ra
iri


e 
St


Su
nd


t L
n


   
 C


ou
nt


ry
 C


lu
b 


R
d


S 
  A


ca
de


m
y 


St


Hilldale Ln


S 
  V


an
 B


ur
en


 S
t


Hyland Dr


Oa
k v


ie
w


Dr


   
 P


in
e 


St


   
 N


or
dl


an
d 


D
r


    Oak St


S 
  B


ro
ok


ly
n 


D
r


    Furseth Rd


Ash
Ln


    Felland St


    Isham St


   
 B


er
ry


 S
t


    Schroeder Ln


Chapi n


Ln


Not tingha m Rd


    Brooklyn Dr


    Gilrust Ave


    Clyde St


Eisenhower Rd


    Aasen Dr


S 
  G


je
rt


so
n 


St


Burritt


Rd


W   Taft St
Skogdale n Dr


    Vernon St


   
 R


ow
e 


St


Lunde Cir


Indus t r i al Cir


    Ridge St


    Lowell St


    Haggman Rd


E Academy St


    Sheryl Ln


    Duncan Rd


    Otteson Dr


    M
ellum Dr


S 
  Q


ua
m


 D
r


W   Broadway St


    Forton St


W   McKinley St


    
Tra


cy
 Ln


    Truman Rd


    Westchester Cir


    Am
undson Pkw


y


Aspen Rd


   
 C


ot
to


nw
oo


d 
D


r


   
 C


om
m


er
ce


 R
d


    Yahara Rd


    Marie Dr


    Smedal Dr


    Holtan Rd


Business Park Cir


    Carl Ave


    Kegonsa Rd


    
Pa


rad
ise


 D
r


Se ve rson Dr


Course View Dr


N 
M


on
ro


e 
St


Alice Cir


   
 F


al
len


 O
ak


 T
rl


    Meadow Dr


    Roy Ave


   
 Q


ui
nn


 L
n


    Park St


   
 H


ill
 S


t


   
 O


ak
 O


pe
ni


ng
 D


r


   
 E


ig
ht


h 
St


    Highland Ln


    Giles St


Shore ViewDr


    
Oak


woo
d C


t


   
 H


an
so


n 
R


d


    Cedarbrook Ln


    
Apo


llo
 Cir


N 
  M


ad
is


on
 S


t


Pe
te


rs
on


Dr


    Red Oak Dr


    Patterson St


    Skyline Ln


    Blue Heron Ct


    Oakridge W
ay


   
 B


er
ge


n 
Ct


    Clancey Ln


S 
  F


ift
h 


St


    Giles St


    Ridge St


H yland Dr


  C
TH


 N
  


W   Milwaukee St


   
 U


nn
am


ed
  


    Vernon St


    Unnamed  


E   South St


4


3


1 2


MAP 5Stoughton Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan
Recreational Routes CITY OF STOUGHTON


381 E. Main St.
Stoughton, WI 53589
Project 52-0617 • 11.27.2018


Î Î Î


ÎÎÎ


A B C D


3


2


1


DCBA


1


2


3


I 0 2,0001,000 Feet


Dane County trail planned
to connect to Lake


Kegonsa State Park, Fish
Camp County Park, the 


Village of McFarland and
the Capital City Trail in 


Madison.


_
LEGEND


RECREATIONAL ROUTES


Bike Route


Existing Trail


Existing Bike Lane


Future Bike Lane


Proposed Multi-Use Trail


Planned Multi-Use Trail


! ! ! ! ! Snowmobile Trail


Note: Existing and planned bike trails, lanes 
and routes are from the 2017 Stoughton 
Bike Transportation Plan and the 2017 City 
of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan. The
Planned Dane County Trail is from Dane 
County Parks and Open Space Plan.


DESTINATIONS


k
Future Park
(Approximate Location)


Schools


County Parks


Parks


OTHER ROUTE IMPROVEMENTS


Reconstruction of the bridge at Cooper's
Causeway should include bike/ped
accommodations. The current
configuration under the bridge is unsafe
as bicyclists, pedestrians and motorists
are forced through the same narrow
passage. Improvements should include 
widening the road and separated facilities 
for bike/ped users.


Cooper's Causeway Bridge!2


!1 Bike/Ped Bridge
A bike/ped bridge is recommended
to serve the future residents of the 
Kettle Park West development.


A bike/ped bridge is recommended to 
connect the future RDA Riverwalk to the 
Mandt Park trail network and future 
whitewater park development.


!3 Bike/Ped Bridge


Improvements are recommended at the 
snowmobile trail crossing at Highway 51. 
Improvment options should be investigated 
including signage, HAWK signals, 
pavement markings and/or an underpass.


!4 Snowmobile Trail Crossing





